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Independent Auditor's Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To General Assembly

Al-Eqbal Investment Company
(Public Shareholding Company)
Amman - Jordan

Report on the audit of the conselidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial siatements of Al-Egbal Investment Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the related consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes (o the consolidated financial stalements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the sccompanying consolidated financial statements Present Fairly, in el material
respecits, Lhe consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis of Opinjon

We conducted our oudit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Respoasihilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with Intemational Ethics Standards Board of Accountant Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention and as mentioned in note (23) to the consolidated
financial statements which describes that the group have contingent tax liabilities related to the years
from 2009 to 2016, approximately JOD 16 million and lagel compenstion approximately JOD 10
million. The lawsuils are still pending in the tax courts. The Group's Management and legal consultant
opinion is that the probability of winning the case is high and the recorded provisions are adequate.The
ultimate outcome of the lawsuits cannot reliably be determined and Accordingly, no additional
provisian has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements Against any consequences that
may arise on the Group.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our sudit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separale opinion about these matters. We have determined
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the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our report.

1- Inceme Tax

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was nddressed in our audit

Income tax provision requires the management to
make judgments and estimates in relation to
income tax lawsuits and tax provisions. This
maller is considered one of the key areas in our
audit on the Group, taking into consideration that
subsidizries are located in different taxable areas.

Our audit procedures included to assess of the
Group's tax positions, its correspondence with
the relevant tax outhoritics and with Group's
legal and tax consultants and to analyze and

! challenge the assumptions used to determine tax

provisions based on our knowledge and
experience of the application of legislation by
the relevant authorities and courts. OQur
assessment included consideration of (he
adequacy of the taken provisions by the Group
to face the liabilities that may rise from income
tax lawsuils.

Impairment in Intangible Asscts

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The group has acquired companies during the
cument and previous years, This acquision
resulled in an intangible assets amounted to JD
182 million. The Group's manegement
performed annual valuation for its intangible
assels to determine whether there is any
indication on impairment of intangible assets,

Evaluating inlangible assets includes many
assumptions and estimales, which make it a Key

Audit Matters.

Based on the followed audit procedures, a study
from expert has been obtained and the
assumptions and methodology used in the study
has been reviewed.
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3- Expected credit loss in trade recelvables

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our andit

The Group has trade and other receivables with
approximately JO 80 million as of December 31,
2018 comparing to approximately 68 million as
of 31 December 2017, this increase has mainly
resulted from trade receivables recognized in the
accounts of the subsidiaries acquired during 2017
and 2018. In addition to an increase in the ceilings
granted to some customers and dealing with new
customers during 2018,

The adequacy of Ihe recorded provisions for
those receivables depend on management
estimates, and according to IFRS (9). which
make it a Key Audit Matters.

Our audit procedures includes testing the
Group’s controls over the receivables collection
processes; including accepting new customers,
testing the receipt of cash subsequent to year
end; and testing the adequacy of the Group’s
ecpected credit loss provision against trade
receivables by assessing the management's
assumptions, taking into consideration the
externa) available data on trade credit exposures
in this sector.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information does not include the
consolidated financial statements and audit veport on the consolidated financial statements any other

information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Through performing our audit on the consolidated financial slatements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materinlly inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit. If, we conclude that
there is a material misstalement in this other information, we are required to report that facl. We have
not been provided with the annual report at the Group or any other informalion as it relates 10 this
paragraph until the date of this report.

Responsibilitics of Management and These Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Firnancial Statements

Menagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
stalements in accordance with IFRS, and for such intermal control as manegement considers is
Necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial siatements that are
free from malerinl misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic aliernative but (o do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Caonsolidated Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our audit
report that includes our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of ssurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will aiways detect 2 maleria) misstatemnent when it exists.

Misslatements caz arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in agpregate,

they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements,

As part of audit process in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may

invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obiain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions thnt may cast significant doubt on the Group’s abilily to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the
refated disclosures in the consalidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, we
will modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of

our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group fo cease to continue as a
going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represcnt the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audil opinion on the consolidated financial stalements of the Group.

We communicale with those charged with govermance regarding, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a siatement that we have comptlied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Determined those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our audit report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumsiances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 10 outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records, Which are, in accordance in all material respects with
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the peneral assembly (o approve
the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial siatements are translated copy to the English language of the original
consolidated financial statements issued in Arabic,

Kawasmy & Partners

KPMG
Hatem Kawas Amman - Jordan
License No, (656) V March 26, 2019
.
KPMG |
Kawasmy & Partners (s
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Jordanian Dinar

Assets

Current Assets

Cash on hand and at banks
Trade and other receivables
Inventory

Other debit balances

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Financial assets al fair value through other comprehensive

income

Investment property

Intangible essels

Property, plant and equipment
Advance payments for Investments
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Linbijlities

Deferred cheques -short term
Accounts payable

Other credit balances

Income (ax provision

Payables due to acquisition- short term
Loans and Bank facilities- short term
Total Current Linbilitics
Non-Current Liabilities

Provision of employees’ end of service indemnity
Payables due to acquisition- long term
Loans and bank facilities- long term
Total Non-Current Linbilities

Total Liabilities

Sharcholders’ Equity

Capital

Statulory reserve

Cumulative change in fair value
Translation reserve

Retained earnings

Total Shareholders® Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders® Equity

As of December 31,

Note 2018 2017
5 57,772,284 21,644,788
6 80,019,775 68,633,332
7 37,725,583 28,348,285
8 25,198,616 5,944,212
200,716,258 124,570,617
9 150,525 784,716
10 674,552 674,552
11 182,297,000 45,555,887
12 29,351,887 21,965,209
25 863,871 65,085,689
213,337,835 134,066,053
414,054,093 258,636,670
380,655 299479
17,615,290 13,901 441
13 15,412,439 13,723,642
20 7,223,590 6,021,753
14-1 4,183,378 29,505,610
15-1 78,069,047 85,702,430
122,884,399 149,154,355
2 5,284,983 4,344,446
142 14,180,000 2,658,750
15-2 126,535,379 9,130,272
146,000,362 16,133,468
268,884,761 165,287,823
1 60,000,000 30,000,000
28 13,897,311 13,897,311
(20,734) 290,046
236,323 -
71,056,432 49,161,450
145,169,332 93,348,847
414,054,093 258,636,670

The accompanying notes from pages (10) 1o (46) are an integral part of these consolidated financial sintements

and should be read with them together with the independent auditor's repord.

Chief Financial Officer

Board Chalrman
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREROLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Jordanian Dinar
Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses

Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Administrative and logistics fees

Impairment loss on advance payments for investments
Operating income for the year

Finance cost

Bank interests revenue

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income

Profit lor the year before income tax and board of
dircctors’ remuneration

Income tax expense

Profit for the year before board of directors' remuneration

Board of directors’ remuneration
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income ftems;
Items will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Changes in fair value for financial assets through other
Comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share (JD/Share)

For the year end December 31,

Note 2018 2017
188,606,262 161,654,931
16 {95,025,684) (99,532,963)
93,580,578 62,121,968
17 (22,838,391) (15,567,199)
i8 (11,868,442) (7,174,798)
28,900 30,811
26 10,955,274 15,467,068
- (149,000)
69,857,919 54,728,850
(10,548,057) (2,871,683)
185,166 307,956
10,416 28,900
24 310,398 243,435
59,415,842 52,437,458
20 {7,716,898) (5,693,123)
51,698,944 46,744,335
(45,000) (45,000)
51,653,944 46,699,335
85,173 21,624
(154,955) (7,008)
236,323 -
51,820,485 46,713 861
2] 0.86 0.78

The accompanying notes from pages (10) 1o (46) are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements
and should be read with them together the with independent suditor's report.

Chief Financial Officer

Board Chairman
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMDMIAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Cumulative
Statutory  changein fair  Translation Retained

Jordanian Dinar Capital Reserve valae Reserve earnings * Total

Balance ns of January 1, 2018 30,000,000 13,897,311 290,046 - 49,161,450 93,348,847
Profit for the year - - - - 51,653,944 51,653,944
Other comprehensive income - . (154,955) 236,323 85,173 166,541
Transfer from fair value reserve to relained earnings - - {155,825} - 155,825 -
Increasing capital- Note (27) 30,000,000 - - - (30,000,000) -
Balance as of December 31, 2018 60,000,000 13,497,311 (20,734) 236313 71056432 145,169,332
Balance os at January 1, 2017 30,000,000 13,897,311 340,934 - 42,396,741 86,634,986
Profit for the year - - - - 46,699,335 46,699,315
Other comprehensive income - - (7,098) - 21,624 14,526
Transfer from fair value reserve to refained comings - - (43,790) - 43,790 -
Dividends distribution during the year-Notc (19) - - - - (40,000,000)  (40,000,000)
Batance a3 of December 31, 2017 30,000,000 13,897,311 250,046 - 49,161,490 93,348,847

*According 1o the Jordanian Securities Commission {JSC} instructions the negative value of the cumulative change in fair vatue in the retained camings is
prohibited from distribution 1o starcholders,

The eccompanying notes from pages {10) to (46) are an integral part of these lidated financial st and should be read with them Logether with the
Independent Auditors report,




AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN -~ JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year end December 31,
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Jordanian Dirar Note 20138 2017
Cash Mows from operating activitics

Profit for the year before income tax 59,370,842 52,392 458
Adjustments for:

Expected credit loss provision 6 151,238 -
Key-money amortization 375,422 453,594
Depreciation 12 3,730,447 3,015,791
Gain ffom sale of property, plant and equipment {10,416) (28,900)
Provision for employces® end of service indemnity 22 1,055,014 1,017,149
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other

compreliensive income (28,900 (30,811)
Finance cosis 10,948,057 2,871,683
Provision for slow moving ilems 7 1,145,970 188,442
Impairment of advance payments for investments - 149,000

76,837,674 60,028,406

Change in:

Trade and other receivables (11,637,681) (43,015,449)
Cheques under collection - 28,360
Inventory {10,523,268) {4,120,150)
Other debit balances {19,629,826) {1,699,564)
Accounts payable 3,713,849 6,737,821
Deferred cheques 81,176 (58,931)
Other credit balances 1,688,797 458,149
Cnsh generated from operating activities 40,530,721 18,358,642
Incorme tax paid 20 (6,515,061) (5,280,521)
Employces® end of service indemnity paid 22 {114,477 {553,014)
Net Cash flows from operating activities 33,901,183 12,525,105
Cash flows from Investing aclivitics

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 48,653 64,934
Advance payments for investments - (64.337,623)
Acquisition of property, ptant and equipment {11,155,362) (6,473,163)
Dividends from financial assets ot fair value through other

comprehensive income 28,900 30,811
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiarics and distribution righis (86,320,277} (6,159,799}
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income 564,409 144,443
Net cash flaws used in investing activities {96,833.677) (76,730,397
Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs paid (10,948,057 {2,871,683)
Loans and bank focilitics 109,771,724 78,902,702
Dividends paid - {39,910,374)
Net cash flows from linancing activities 98,823,667 36,120,645
Net increase (decrease) in cash on liand and at banks 35,891,173 (28,084,647
Cash on hand and ot banks at the beginning of the year 21,644,788 49,729,438
Translation reserve 236,323 -
Cash on hand snd at banks at the end of the year 5 57,772,284 21,644,788

The accompanying notes from pages (10) to (46) are an integra) part of these consolidated financial statements and
should be read with them together with the independent Auditor’s report.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GENERAL

Al-Eqbal Investment Company-PLC (International Tobacco and Cigarettes PLC previously) was
incorporated in accordance with Jordan Companies temporary Law no, (1) for the year 1989 as a Jordanian
public shareholding company, and registered in the ministry of industry and trade of Jordan under no. (218)
on June 1, 1992. with authorized paid up capital amounted to JD 5 millions (1 JD /share).

On October 10, 1993 the capital has been raised through special offering by 100% of the capital 1o reach
JD 10 millions. On May S, 1998 the capital has been raised through distributing frec shares by 20% of the
capital to reach JD 12 million. On April 16, 2001 the Company has merged with Eqbal for Financial
Investments Company to be the capital JD 14,304,675. On April 15, 2002 the capital has mised through
distributing free shares by 5% of the capital to reach JD 15 million. On April 10, 2005 the capilal has been
raised through distributing free shares by 10% to reach ID 16,500,000. On April 16, 2006 the capital has
been raised through distributing free shares by 21% of capital to reach JD 20 millions. On February 25,
2013 the capital has raised through distributing free shares by 25% of the capital to reach JD 25 millions.

The general assembly decided on March 24, 2016 to increase its capital by 5,000,000 shares through
capitalizing the retained eamings by an amount of JD 5,000,000 to become 30 millions (1 J Dv/share).

The general assembly decided in the extraordinary mecting on June 3, 2018 (o increase ils capital by
30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained earnings by an amount of YD 30,000,000 to become the
authorized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share), The Company completed its legal procedures
of increasing the capital in the Ministry of Industry and Trade on July 17, 2018,

The company’s main objectives include the following:

Owning commercial agencies.

Trade intermediarics (except dealing with International stock).

Engnging in brokerage and trading tenders.

Import and export to serve the company’s business.

Guaranty of third parties obligations relevant to the interest of the company.
Investment of the Company's funds surplus in the appropriate way.

Ownership of movable and immovable funds, for achieving the company's objectives.
Ownership of land and rcal estate for achieving the company’s objectives.
Contracting with any government, commission, authority, company, institution or individual interested in
the goals and objectives of the company or any of them.

Borrowing needed money from banks.

The consolidated financial stalements were approved by the Board of Directors an March 20, 2019 and is
subject to the General Assembly's approval,

BASIS OF PREPARATION CONSOLIDATED FINACIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international financial
reporting standards.

(b) Basis of cansolidaled financial stntements

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements of Al-Eqbal
Investment Company (the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries, which subject to its control. Subsidiaries
are entitics controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights 1o,
variable retuns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect thase retumns through its
power over the invested entity, The financial statements of the subsidiaries are inciuded in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which controls commences until the date on which control ceases.

10
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(FUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The subsidiaries’ operations results are included in consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date of owning them, which is the date on which the control commences.

The parcnt company controls subsidiaries when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with these subsidiaries and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over these
subsidiaries.

Thus, the principle of control sets out the following three elements of control:

Power of the investor over the investee;
Exposure, or righls, to variable returns ot the invetor from its involvement with the investee; and

The ability of the investor to use power over the investee to affect the amount of the investee and its
returns.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annuaily for impairment.

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Extra transactions costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue
of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounis related to the settlement of pre-existing

relationship. Such amounts are generally recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income,

Contingent consideration payable is measurcd at fair value at the acquisition date if the contingent
consideration was classified as equity. As a result, any tmnsactions are treated through equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition.

On loss of control, the parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist. The parent no longet controls the
subsidiary’s individual assets and liabilities and other elements of owners' equity related (o the
subsidiary and eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Gain or loss associated with the loss of conirol attributsble to the former controlling interest are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other compreliensive income.

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the group
are eliminated when preparing these consolidated financial statement.

- The company owns the following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018:

Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Capital Percentage operation operation
%

Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and
Agencies®* 6,000,000 100 Tobacco Jordan
Spectrum International for Rencwable
Energy 7,000,000 100 Renewable cnergy Jordan
Internatjonal Cigarettes and Tobacco
Company (Under liquidation) 6,000,000 100 Tobacco Jordan

Cayman
Al Fakher Holding-global operations 35,450 100 Investment Island
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
*Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and Agencies, owns a subsidiary of which related information is as follows;

Ownership Nature of Country of

Company Name Capital Percentage operation Operation
Yo

Al Falcher Holding for Tobacco Trading Cayman

and Agencies * 35,450 100 Investments Island

*Al Fakher Holding for Tobacco Tradin

g and Agencies (Cayman Island), owns subsidiaries of which
related information are 25 follows:

Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Capital Percentage operation Operation
Al Fakher Tobaceo F.Z.E * 35,705 100 Investments UAE
Cayman
Al Fakher International Company 7,100 100 Teobacco Island
Fioneer Venture Group Company ** 35,464 100 Trading UAE
Al Fakher Tobacco Factary- Turkey 18,824 100 Tobacco Turkey
*Al Fakher Tobacco F.Z.E (UAE}, owns a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:
Partoer’s Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Contribution  Percentage operation Operation
Yo
Al Fakher Tobacco Faclory F.ZE 7,720,000 100 Tobacco UAE

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory owns a company in Ajman industrial area {Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading
and Agencies LLC). Where the financial and administrative control is to Al Fakher Tobacco Factary
under the approval and pledge from the other partner.

**Pioneer Venture Group owns subsidiaries of which related information are as follows;

Ownership Nature of Country of

Company Name Capital Percentage operation Operation
Ye

Al Fakher Holding- USA *#+ 7,100 100 Investment USA

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Epypt * 119,662 100 Tobacco Egypt

Al Fakher Tobacco Factory - Germany * 21,734 100 Tebacco Germany

Qamel Al Fakher Trading Est ** 4,567 100 Tobacco KSA

Global Arab Trading and Export

Company * 239,325 100 Tobacco Egypt

Charms for Importation and Distribution * 79,775 100 Tobacco Epypt

* Pioneer Venture Group has acquired the above companies in 2018,

** Pionecr Venturc Group has acquired
and administrative control is to Pio

partner.

Qameh Al Fakher Trading Est Company in 2018, Where the financial
neer Venture Group under the approval and pledge from the other

12
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
***Al Fakher Holding- USA acquired a subsidiary of which related information is as follows:

Partner’s Ownership Nature of Country of
Company Name Contribution Percentage operation Opcration
Y
Al Fakher Distribution -- USA
(Previously Sierra Network) 710 100 Tobaceo USA

= The following schedule represents the financial position and financial performance of the subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2018:

As of December 31,2018
Total
comprehensive

Total Total Total income (loss)
Jordanian Dinar Assels Linbilities Revenue for the year
Al Fakher for Tobacco Trading and
Agencics — Consolidated 406,623,796 340,770,656 187,209,826 54,227,272
Spectrum Internatjonal for Renewable
Energy 7,752,497 3,386,179 1,396,436 (541,423)
International cigarettes and Tobacco
Company 4,247,571 - - -

As ol December 31, 2017
Total
comprehensive

Total Total Total income (loss)
Jordanian Dinar Assels Linbilities Revenue for the year
Al Fakher for Tobaceo Trading and
Agencics - Consolidated 251,910,223 190,633,360 152,142,970 49,375,401
Spectrum Intemnational for Renewable
Enerpy 6,012,429 1,947,257 9,511,961 (383,483)
International cigarettes and Tobacco
Company 4,247,571 - - {1,500)

{c) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statemcnts have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
financial assets at the fair value through other comprehensive income measured at fair value, financial
assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost,

{(d) Functionnl and presentation currency

These consolidnted financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the Group's functional
cumrency,

{e) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptjons that affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses,
provisions and to disclose the contingent liabilities. These estimates and judgmenis also affect the income,
expenses and provisions as well as the reserve for the valuation of financial assels at fair valuc and in
particular require management to make judgments to estimate future cash flow amounts. The estimates are
necessarily based on assumptions and factors with varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and that

13
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

actual results may differ from estimates due 1o the changes resulting from the conditions and circumstances
of those eslimates in the future.

Judgements

The following are the most significant judgments that have effect on the amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements applied in 2018 only:

Classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and

assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding.

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initin) recognition, determining methodology for ncorporating forward-looking
information into measurement of ECL and selection end approval of models used to measure ECL.

Assumptions

The following are materially significant estimates of the consolidated financial statements as at December
31, 2018:

Impairment of financial instruments: determining inputs into the ECL. measurement model, including
incorporation of forward-looking information.

Applicable to 2018 and 2017:

The estimates included in the consolidaled financial statements are reasonable and are as follows:

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and intangible assets based on
the general condition of these nssets and the expectation for their usefu) economic lives in the future.

Management frequently reviews the lawsuis raiscd against the group based on a lcgal study prepared by
the company's legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the group may incurred in the future.

Provision is made for credit Josses expected for receivables based on judgment and assumptions approved
by the Group's management to estimate the provision to be made in accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Management estimates the provision to decrease invenlory to net realizable value if the cost of inventory
may not be recoverable, damaged, wholly or partinlly obsolete, and it selling price to fall below cost or
any other factors that causes the recoverable amount to be lower than its carrying amount.

Management review annually the recoverable amount of the intangible asscts to determine whether there
was any impairment in its value.

Management estimates the provision for income tax in accordance with the prevailing laws and regulations.

Fair value measurement:

Thelevel in the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements are to be fully classified and fair
value measurements should be determined and disclosed in accordance with the levels set out in IFRS.
The difference between level 2 and level 3 of fair value measurements means assessing whether
information or inputs are observable and the extent of information that is not observable, which requires
carcful judgment and analysis of the inpuls used to measure fair value including consideration of all factors
relating to the asset or liability, When assessing the fair value of financial assets or liabilities, the Group
uses market information when available. In the absence of first level inputs, the Group deals with
independent parties qualified to prepare the valuation studies. The appropriate valuation methods and
inputs used to prepare the assessment are reviewed by management.

- Management believes that its estimates and judgments are reasonable and sufficient.

14
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Significant Accounting Pelicies

The accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 3] December 2018 are the same as those applied by the Group in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, except the Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards effective on January 1, 2018 and after which are as the followinpgs:

-IFRS (9): Financia! Instruments,

-IFRS (15): Revenue from Contracls with Customers.

-IFRS (2): Share-based Payments.

-Amendments on IAS (40): Transfers of Investment Property.

-Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle (Amendment to IFRS (1): First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards and IAS (28): Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures,

-Applying IFRS (9): Financial Instruments with [FRS (4): Insurance Contracts (Amendments to IFRS
(4.

-IFRIC (22): Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration.

-IFRIC (14): Deferred accounts.

The application of these amended standards did not have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The following IFRS (15) and (9) implementation details:

IERS {15): Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS (15) Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognized, applics to all entities entering into
contracts for the supply of services and goods with customers except for contracts subject to other
accounting standards such as IFRS (9) and IAS (17), which replaces this Standard instead of IAS (1):
Construction Contracts, IAS (I8) Revenue and IFRIC {13): Customer Loyalty Program, IFRIC (15):
Agreements of the construction of real estate, IFRIC {18): Transfer of Assets form Customers nnd SIC
(31) Revenue - Barter Transactions Invalving Advertising Services, and based on management review
and the annual review, there was no significant effect of the application of the standard on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The application of these amended standards did not have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group,

IFRS (9); Fingncia] Instruments
The Group has adapted [FRS (9) a3 8 whole starting on I January 2018. IFRS (9) defines requirements
for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts 1o buy or sell

non-financial items. This slandard replaces IAS (39) Financial Instruments: (Recognition and
Measurement).

The details of the new significant accounting policies and the nature and impact of changes in previous
accounting policies are the below:

A) Classification and measurcment of financial assets and financial liabilities:

IFRS (9) largely retains the existing requirements in LAS (39) for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. Howaver, it eliminates the previous 1AS (39) categories for financial assets of
held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

Financial assects:

The Graup has applied the first adoplion of first stage of [FRS (9) as of 1 January 2018 based on the
J5C's request, there were no significant differences between the first stage of the Standard and the final
version of the Standard issued on July 24, 2011.

According to IFRS (9), upon initial recognition, financial mssets are classified and measured at
amortized cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS (9) is generally
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. IFRS (9) eliminates the previous IAS (39) categories of held to maturity, loans and
receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS (9), derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is
a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument
as a whole is assessed for classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through comprehensive income;

® It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows.

« Its contractual terms give rise in specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through consolidated statement of profit and
loss:

o Its held within a business model whase objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

« Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
¢lect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in consolidated other comprehensive
income. This election is mode on an investment - by — investment basis.

All financial assets that are did not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through the other
comprehensive income statement mentioned above should be measured at fair value through profit or
loss. This includes al) financial assets derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the Group has the option to
choose ievocably to classify and measure financial assels that meet the measurement requirements at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income within financial assets at fair value
through statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, accounting inconsistency that may arise.

The accounting policies applied are similar 1o the accounting policies adopted by the Group
(considering that the Group has early application of the initial phase of IFRS {9M).

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS (39) and the new measurement categories under IFRS (9) for each class of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities as at | January 2018.

The cffect of adopting IFRS (9) on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 1 January 2018 relates
solely to the new impairment requirements.

New Currying New Currying
I 3 Classification clossification  amount under amount under
Jordanian Dinar under IAS (39)  under IFRS (9) IAS (39) 1FRS (9)
Financial gasscts
Loans and
Cash on hand and at banks receivables Amortized cost 21,644,788 21,644,788
Trade and other Loans and
reccivables receivables Amortized cost 68,633,332 68,633,332
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN —JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial liabilities:

The implementation of IFRS (9) has no significant impact on the applied accounting policies by the
Group which related to financial liabilities whether. IFRS (9) has retained the requirements of LAS (39)
regarding the classification of financial liabilities. IAS (39) requires recognition of the differences in
the assessment of financial liabilities classified as finoncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
in the statement of profit and loss, whereas IFRS (9) requires:

Recognition of differences in the assessment of financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through statement of profit and loss as a result of changes in credit risk in the statement of
comprehensive income.,

The remaining amount of fair value valuation differences is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Group has not classified any financial liabilities in financial liabilities at fair value tlrough profit
or loss. There is no intention of the management to classify any financial liabilities through profit and

loss. Therefore, there is no impact from the application of IFRS (9), to the consolidated financial
statementis.

B) Impairment on financial assets:

IFRS {9) replaces the "loss rccognition” madel adopted in IAS (39) to calculate the impairment of
financial asscts over "expected credit loss” model, which requires the use of estimates and Jjudgments
to estimate economic factors. The moadel will be applied to financial assets - debt instruments classified
at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income but not to investments in equity

instruments. Where credit losses are recognized in nccordance with IFRS (9), which is earlier than IAS
(39).

Under IFRS (9), impairment loss arc measured on either of the following bases:

Lifetime ECLs: These ECLs result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument until the maturity date from the date of consolidated financial statements.

The expected impairment of the life of the financial instrumeat 1o maturity is calculated in the event of
a significant increase in credit risk. The expected credit Joss model requires recognition of the expecied
loss over the life of the asset debt instruments are very similar to the requirements of 1AS {39),

When determining whether the credit risk of financial assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition and in estimating the expected credit loss, the Group relies on reasonable and supportive
information aveilable and relevani, including quantitative and qualitative information and analysis of
this information based on the Group's past experience and credit study.

The Group considers financial asscts to be impaired when;

The client / buyer will not be able ta settle its obligations 10 the Group without resorting to the use of
collateral held against such obligations (if any).

If more than 90 days have clapsed on maturity of financial assets.
Expected credit loss measurement:

The expected credit loss calculation mechanism depends on the (probability of default), which is
calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, {loss given default), which depends

on the value of the existing collateral, the (exposure at default), the expected credit loss is discounted
at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit rating impairment:
At each finencial period, the Group evaluates the credit rating of financial assets at amortized cost and
fair value through other statement of comprehensive income. The credit rating of financial assets is

considered to be impaired when one or more cvents that have a negative impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset occur.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Disclosure about impairment:

Provisions loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying
amouni of the financial asset. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
provision for impairment is recognized in statement of other comprehensive income and is not deducted
from the carrying amount of the financial asset. The losses of other financial assels are presented under
'Financing expenses’ in the same manner of disclosure used in accordance with IAS (39). Such
disclosure is not included in the statement of profit or loss and other statement of comprehensive income
based on malterial considerations,

The followings arc the most significant accounting policies:

(A) Finnncial assets and liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables issued on the date when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and linbilitics initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributsble to its acquisition or issue.

Classification
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; FVOCI; or FVTPL.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following Conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

Its held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash fows,and
Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest an the principal amount ouistanding.

Financial assels measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

It's hield within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
clect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value on OCI. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are measured at FVTPL.

Business modcl assessment: Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because the best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considerad includes:

The stated policies and abjectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management;
The risks that affect the performance of the business modsl (and the financial assets held w thin that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
How managers of the business are compensated -c.g. whether campensation is based on the fair value
of the nssets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial asseis in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets -Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely paymeants of principal and
interest- Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair vaiue of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount oulstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit marpin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractunl cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

-Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:
-Prepayment and extension features; and

-Terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets.

(B) Non-derivative finaucial assets and financial liabilitics — recognition and derecogaltion

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date when they

are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially recognized on the trade
date.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the asset
expirc, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantizally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group has n legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultaneously,

(C) Non-derivative financial assets — measurement

Financla)l assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

These assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of retaining them over the long
term.

These assets are recognized on acquisition al fair value plus acquisition costs and subsequently revalued
at fair value, the change in fair value is reflected in consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income, sharcholders’ equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, including changes in
fair value arising from translation differences on non-monetary items in foreign currencies, In the event
of the sale of these assets or part thereof, the resulting gain or loss is recognized in consolidated
comprehansive income and in equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. The balance of
the asset valuation reserve sold directly to relained eamings or accumulated losses not through
consolidated stalement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

The Group may elect to recognize the initial gain or loss and recognize it on the statement of
comprehensive income on equity investments that are not held for trading and are recognized at fair
value through consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. These assets are not subject to

impairment testing. Dividend income is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or foss in a
separate line item,
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial assets nt amortized cost

The financial assets that the Group's management intends to maintain in order to collect the contractual
cash flows which consist of payments of principal and interest on the outstanding debt balance on fixed

and fixed payment dates. These assets have no active market prices and the Group has no intention of
sclling these assets in the near futuse,

These assets are recognized st cost, plus acquisition costs, and the allowance / discount is amortized
using the effective interest method, restricted or credited to the interest. Any impairment provisions that
result in the non-recovery of the asset or part thereof are written off, any impairment is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

The amount of impairment in value of these assels represents the difference between the carrying value

of the records and the present value of the expected discounted cash flows at the original effective
interest rate.

Any financial assets from / to this item are reclassified only in cases determined by the IFRS. If any of
these assets are sold before their due date, such sales should be recorded in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in a separate item and disclosed in accordance with the
requircments of the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Neon-derivative fingncinl liabilities at foir value

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable

transaclion costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

(D) Lceases

Leases in which the Group is a lessec — Financing

Leases of assets, that transfer to the group substantially all of the risks and rewsards of ownership are
classified as finance leases, the leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal 1o the lower of
their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the asscts are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

The minimum lease payments under operating lease is allocated between finance cost and principal
payment.

Lenses in which the Group is a lessee — Opcrating

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognized m the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.

Payments made under operating lease are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a siraight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leage incentives received
are recognized as en integral part of the 1otal lease expense, over the term of the Jease.

Leases in which the Group is a lessor— Financing

The Group classifies leases of assets in lcase contract which transfer most of risks and rewards 1o the

lessee as finance lease, and a receivables recognized which equal to the net investment of financial
asscts in granted loans.

(E) Property, plaut and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment arc measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the property, plant and
cquipment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separated items of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the camying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognized net within the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the company and ils cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized.

Onpoing costs of repair and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are cxpensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

Dopreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plont and equipment for the current and previous year are as
follows:

ktems of property, plant and equipment Deprecia rate
%
Vehicles 20-25
Other equipment 20-25
Camputers and office equipment 20-25
Fumiture and fixtures 10- 20
Tools 25
Machines and equipment 10- 20
Buildings 5
Leasehold improvements 20

The group reviews the useful lives and depreciation for the property, plant and equipment al the end of
each financial year.

(F) Impairment

Financial Assets - Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

A financial nsset is assessed ot each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that
it is impaired.

A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event had a negative effect on
the estimated future consolidated cash flows of that asset that can be estimated refiably.

An impairment Joss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between ils carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future consolidated cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the
impairment loss was recognized, For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the reversal is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Noo-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the group's non-financial assets are reviewed at cach reporting date to
determine whcther there is any indication of impairment. If ony such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell o its value in use.

All impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or less and other
comprehensive income.

(G) Investment in property

Investment property is property held cither to eamn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investments Property is recognized initially at cost. Their fair values are
disclosed in the notes of the consolidated financial slatements, independent real-estate experts based on
market values, in an active market, revaluate investment property annually.

(H) Intangible Assets

@

Goodwill

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the fair value of the consideration transferred;
plus The recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire; plus the fair value of the
pre-existing equity interest in the acquire; less The net recognized amount (Fair valuc) of the identifiable
assets acquired and linbilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured ot cost less accumulated impairment losses. In respect of equity-accounted
investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment, and
any impairment loss is allocated to the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investee as a whole.
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired through other than acquisition are recognized at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets, which have finite usefl lives, are amortized over their useful lives, Amortization is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income; however,
intangible assets without definite useful lives are required to be tested for impairment as of the date the

consolidated financial statement. Impairment loss shalt be recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets arising from company operation are not capitalized and should be recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when incurred.

Intangible assets are nssessed at each consolidated reporting date to delermine whether there is any
objective evidence that they are impaired as well as the useful lives of the intangible assel are annually
reassessed and any adjustments raised are recognized in the subsequent years.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated using the simight-line method over their cstimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Revenues recognition -Policy was adopted from January 1, 2018

Revenue is recognized when the Group transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer and cash recovery of the consideration is probable, when the associated costs and possible
costs of goods ean be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management control over the goods.
Also, when there is expected economic financial benefits associnted from the sale and if trade discount

and volume rebate can be measured reliably in order that the tade discount and volume rebate is
recorded as recognized.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{J) Forcign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetery assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reposting date are translated to
Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in
Jordanian Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during

the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated to JOD at the exchange rate at the end of
the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on relranslation of foreign currencies to Jordanian Dinar are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income,

(K) Fair value for financial assets

Fair values represent the amount with which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in a
transaction between knowledgeable, willing partics in an arm’s length transaction.

The closing prices (purchase of assets / sale of liabilities) on the consolidated financial statements date
in effective markets, represents the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that have market prices.

In the absence of quated prices or lack of active trading of some financial assets or the in absence of an
active market, fair value is determined by comparing with current market value of financinl instrument,
or by using the discounted future cash flows discounted at the rate of similar financia! instnument or by
use the net assets value method of investments.

(L) Offsetting

Financial liabilities are sct ofT ngainst financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated

financial position only when the obliging legal rights are available or when settled on net basis or the
realization of assets or settlement of liabilities is done at the same time,

(M) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the linbility.

{N) Finanee expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrawings. All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset arc recognized in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

(O) End of Service Indemnity

A pravision for end of service indemnity is recognized if, as a result of a past event, and that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required. Provisions
for end of service indemnity is calculated bases on the Group’s internal bylaw as the following details:

= One year to five yeors of service, ten days of basic salary calculated for each year,

- Above five years to ten years of service, twenty days of basic salary calculated for each year.

- Over ten years of service, thirty days of basic salary calculated for each year.



= =

B2 O = =

E E Em B I D 2 B

=

E = @

Z

E =

[ |

B B G E @ @ @ B

[ J]

85

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(P) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except 1o the extent that it
relales to a business combination, or items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using

lax rates enactled or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to 1ax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the 1ax rates that are expected to be applied to 1emporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilitics will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized.

Deferred 1ax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
prabable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current tax payable is in accordance with prevailing income tax law in the countries where the
companies are located.

{Q) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(R) New standards and interpretations not yet adopled
The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued but are nol cffective yet, the Group has not

applied the following new and revised IFRSs that are available for early application but are not effective
yeu:

Standards

- 1AS 16 Leasing (cffective 1 January 2019 with carly application permitted),

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021 with early application permitted).
Amendments

= IFRIC 23: Uncertainty on Income Tax Processes (effective 1 January 2019).

- Repayment features with negative confirmation - Amendments 10 IFRS (9) (effective on January 1st,
2019).

- Long tenm interest in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to IAS (28) (effcctive on January
1st, 2019).

- Plan amendments, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to 1AS (19) (effective on January 1st,
2019).

- Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle — various standards.

Management anticipates that these standards and amendments will be applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements at the dates set out above, which will have no material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements. Except for IFRS 16, the impact of which is expected to be
as follows:

IFRS (16) Leascs

The Group is required to adopt IFRS (16} “Leases” from January 1, 2019. The Group has assessad the
estimated impact that initinl application of [FRS (16) will have on its financial statement, as described
below. The actual impaci of adopting the standard on January 1, 2019 may change because:

- The Group has not finslized the testing and assessment of controls over its new [T systems, The new

accounling policies are subject 10 change until the Group presents its first consolidated financial
statement that include the date of initial application.

IFRS (16) introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation lo make lease payment. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low value-items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard. IFRS (16) replaces existing

leases guidance, including IAS (17) Leases and IFRIC 4 determining whether as arrangement contains
a lease.

The estimated impact on applying IFRS {16) on the assets and linbilities is as follows:
Estimated impact of adoption of IFRS (16)

As reported at Estimated adjustments Estimated adjustments

December 31, due to adoption of IFRS at January 1, 2019 due
Jordanian Dinar 2018 (16) to adoption of IFRS (16)
Rol assels - 6,334,000 6,334,000
Prepaid expenses 45,597 - (45,597}
Lease liabilities - (6,334,000) (6,334,000)

Leases in which the Group is a lessee

The Group will recognize new assets and liabilities for its opemating leases of siles and rentals, The
nature of expenses related to those leases will now change:

Because the Group will recognize a depreciation charge for right-of-use (RoU} assets and interest
expenses on lease liabilities.
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMDMAN — JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Previously, the Group recognized operating lease expense on straight-line basis over the term of the

lease, and recagnized the asset and liabilities onl
between actual lease payments and the expenses r

y lo the extent thot there was a timing difference
ecognized,

In addition, the Group will no longer recognize provisions for operating Ieases that it assesses to be

onerous, Instead, the Group will include the payments due under the Jease in its lease liability.
Based in the information currently available, the

Iiabilities of JD 6,334,000 as at January 1, 2019.

No significant impact is expecied on other leases in which the Group is a lessee,

Transition to new standard

Group estimales that it will recognize additional lease

The Group plans to apply IFRS (16) on January 1, 2019, using the second option of the modified

retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS (16) will not impact the

opening balance of retained eamnings at January 1, 2019, and with no restatement of comparative

information.

4) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and returns that
distinguish it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments

or engages in producing products or services within sp

from other sectors known as geographical segments.

A- Operating Segment

The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows:

- Tobacco manufacturing and trading.
- Investments.
- Energy.

B- Geographical Segment

The Group operated its activities inside and outside of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan,

Jordanian Dinar
he yegr end December 31 18

Sepment Gross Profit

Administrative expenscs

Selling and distribution cxpenses

Dividends from financia] assets ot fair value
through other comprehensive income

Finance cost

Bonk inlerests revenue

Goin from sale of property, plant and equipment
Administrative and logistics fees

Other income

Segment profits (Iosses) for the year before 1ax
and board of directors® remuncration

Segment totzl asscts
Segment 1otal liabilities
Capital expenditure

ccific economic environment that distinguish it

Tobacco
manufacturing
and trading Energy Investments Total
93,324,510 256,068 - 93,580,578
(17.441,981) (808,525) (4,587,885) (22,838,391)
(11,868,442) - - (11,868,442)
- 28,900 - 28,900
(1,518,237 {102,350) (9,327,470) (10,948,051
183,665 - 1,501 185,166
10416 - - 10416
- - 10,955,274 10,955,274
221,450 (689) 89,637 310,398
62,911,381 (626,596) (2,868.943) 59,415,842
233784,797 7144170 184,125,126 414,054,093
67,026,148 2,721,029 199,137,584 268,884,761
11,138,901 12,918 3,543 11,155,362
26
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tobacco
Jardanian Dinar manuincturing
For the venr end December 31, 2017 and trading _Energy Investments Total
Scgment Gross Profit 61,622,676 499 303 - 62,121,968
Administrative expenses (12,735,779 (743,525) (2,087,895) (15,567,199)
Selling and distribution expenses (7,174,798) - - (7.174,798)
Dividends from financial asseis at fair valuc
through other comprehensive income - 30,811 - 30,811
Impairment loss on edvance payments for
investmenis - (149,000) - (149,000)
Finance cost (1,844,466) (61,592) (965,625) (2,871,683)
Bank interests revenue 280,960 - 26,996 307,956
Ghnin from sale of propenty, plant and equipment 28,900 . - 28,900
Administrative and lopistics fees 15,467,068 - - 15,467,068
Other income 242,924 966 {455) 243,435
Segment profits (losses) for the year before tax
and board of directors® remuneration 55.887.485 (423,048) {3.026.979) 52,437,458
Scgment (otal assets 137,605,354 5,404,102 115,627,214 258,636,670
Scegmemnt total linbilitics 100,948,687 62,857,821 1,481,315 165,287,823
Capital expenditure 6,458,233 5,181 9,749 6,473,163
5) Cash on hand and at banks
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Cash on hand 100,443 106,806
Cuwrent accounts at banks 54,989,233 16,785,280
Deposils at banks * 2,682,608 4,758,702
57,772,284 21,644,788
* The meturity date of the deposits is on monthly basis and the interest rate is between 1% to 5.6%.
6) Trade and other receivables
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Trade receivables 77,525,553 67,622,683
Advance payments to suppliers 2,499,500 1,171,632
Otlier receivables® 406,943 3
80,431,996 68,794,315
Expected credit loss provision** {(412,221) (160,983)
80,019,775 68,633,332
* Other receivables represent the amount due from the old partner of Global Arab Trading and Export
Cornpany, which will be collected during 2019.
**The mavement on the expecied credit loss provision was as follow:
For the Year Ended December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Balance as of January 1, 160,983 160,983
Additions during the year 251,238 -
412,221 160,983
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN -~ JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

*The following is the aging of trade recelvables :

91-180 181-270 271-365 More than
Jordanian Dinar Total 0-90 day day day day 365 day
2018 77,525,553 48,957,508 18,468,896 9,555,522 145,415 398,212
2017 67,622,683 44,360,499 15,563,290 7,366,610 171,292 160,983
7) Inventory
As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Raw material 20,242 B62 20,168,810
Work in process 212,878 88,908
Finished goods 15,240,671 5,919,453
Goods in transit 515,263 439,102
Spare parts 812,057 896,070
Advertisement and accessories goods inventory 1,670,129 890,175
Consumable goods inventory 177,693 134,209

38,871,553 28,536,727
Provision for slow-moving items * (1,145,970) (188,442)

37,725,583 28,348,285

* The Group's management which represented by sales and marketing department calculale the provision

for slow moving items which will not use in production process or it is not expected to sell in the coming

period for finished and advertising.

Jordanian Dinar

Balance as of 1 January
Provision made during the year
Disposed during the year

Other debit balances

Jordanian Dinar

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid income tax

Refundable deposits

Employees receivable

Sales and income tax deposits

Deferred laxes

Taxes on interests

Advance payment on projects under construction
Excise tax

Other

Impairment loss on employees’ account

28

The movement on the provision for slow moving items was as follow:

For The Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017
188,442 -
1,145,970 188,442
(188,442) -
1,145,970 188.442
As of December 31,
2018 2017
4,822,903 2,855,766
902,249 553,418
14,453,590 525,769
180,078 79,991
41,167 22,185
46,405 54,846
161,719 147,669
1,808,375 180,934
2,626,000 1,519,676
176,130 23,958
25,218,616 5,964,212
(20,000) (20,000)
25,198,616 5,944,212
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9) Financinl asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income

Jordanian Dinar 20?; e 311617

Quoted market prices * - 483,651

Unquoted market prices ** 150,525 301,025
150,525 784,716

* This balance represents the fair value of listed financial assets markets for the Group’s share in Bank of
Jordan according to the market value as of December 3 1,2018 and 2017.

** This balance represents the fair value of non-listed in the finencial assets markets for the Group's share

in North Industrial Company (Palestine), the Group has determined the fair value of this account using
Net Assets Method for the last audited financial stalements available.

10) Investment property

Jordanian Dinar Piece As of Deccmber 31,
Country Area Land no number 2018 2017
UAE - Ajman * Aljorf 28 w127 271,028 271,028
Jordan - Amman ** Aljbayha 1 1 403,524 403,524
674,552 674,552

*The fair value for Ajman’s land as of December 31, 2018 according to average real estate expert valuation
amounted to JOD 289,782 (2017: JOD 331,960) the fair value measurement for land has been categorized

under level 2 fair value based on the inputs that has been determined either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices of similar assets).

**The faic value for Amman’'s land as of 31, December 2018 according to average real estale expert
valuation amounted to JOD 1,818,482 (2017: JOD 2,022,535} the fair value measurement for land has
been categorized under level 2 fair value based on the inputs that has been determined either directly
(i.e., as prices} or indirectly (i.¢., derived from prices of similar assets).

11} Intaugible assets

Intangible assets consist of goodwill resulted from acquiring subsidiaries in addition to intangible assets
arising from distribution rights as the following details:

A- Fakher international trading tobacco and agencies purchased on June 1, 2006 100% of Fekher trading
tobacco and agencies - Ajman as [ollow:

A Fair value on Book value on
Jordanian Dinar acquisition acquisition
Property, plant and cquipment 418,293 418,293
Land 251,817 251,817
Other debit balances 38,857 318,857
Inventory 418,390 418,390

1,127,357 1,127,357
Account payables and other credit balonces (10,343) (10,343)
Net assets 1,117,014 1,117,014
Cash paid 7,720,000
Goodwill from acquisition 6,602,986
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B- Fakher Holding- USA purchased on December 4, 2017 100% of Al-Fakher Distribution (Previously

Sierra Network) as follow:

Jordanian Dinar

Cash and cash equivalents

Other debit balances

Inventory

Property and equipment

Account payables and other credit balances
Net assets

Cash peid

Goodwill from acquisition

Fair value on Book value on
acquisition acquisition
1,645,571 1,645,571
176,692 176,692
4,939,000 4,935,000
25,203 25,203
6,786,466 6,786,466
{5,699,634) (5.699,634)
1,086,832 1,086,832
38,622,629
37.535,797

C- Al-Fakher Holding for Tobacco Trading and Agencies — Cayman Island purchased during 2017 100%

of Al-Fakher Factory- Turkey as follow:

Jordanian Dinar
Net assets
Cash paid

Goodvwill from acquisition

Falr value on Book value on
ncquisition acquisition
(70,004) (70,004)
1,347,100
1,417,104

D- Pioneer Venture Group - purchased during 2018 100% of Al-Fakher Factory- Egypt as follow:

Jordanian Dinar

Net assets
Cash paid

Goodwill from acquisition

30

Fair valuc on Book value on
acquisition acquisition
(702,514) (702,514)
2,979,552
3,682,066
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In 2017, the Group purchased the rights of distribution activities for Al Fakher products in 53 countries
under an agreement by Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco Trading and Agencies,

On 31 October 2018, the Group completed the acquision process of purchase the rights of distribution

product activities in the market that have been acquired. With reference that the ngreement is purchasing
agreement for the rights of distribution activities.

Based on the study provided by an expert on the acquision of the disiribution activity, the Group's
management recognized the value of distribution rights as follows:

Joerdanian Dinar 2018

Distribution rights 79,810,367

Goodwill 53,248,680
133,059,047

The summary of intangible assets was as follow:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Disiribution rights 79,810,367 -
Goodwill 102,486,633 45,555,887
182,297,000 45,555,887

3l
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHGLDING COMPANY)
AMDMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) Eroperty, plant and equipment

Compulers Mschines

Dther and olflice Furnitgre and Lenschold Profects nnder
Jordanian Dinar Land  Vehicles I _tqulp and fistore  Touls cquipmenl  Bulldines  Improvements  cosstruciion Total
Cout
Balance &3 of Janvary |, 2018 LEIEN ) I N ek R 1915295 548,306 0519 3313320 15684230  13,IW.000 17,246 2667213 425387
Additions 108,130 203,008 34890 376,524 npr s 51414 7272 35,085 BAA5344  11,155362
Dspetal - {34.208) {40,043} - s (4192) {84,276) . . - (I,716)
Tramskers - - - - - 13.608 - - . (81,508) -
Balance 33 of December 11,2018 3,62387)  LI71.650 1,224,186 954,830 S00.676 3SITI25 16,061,368 13,7869 262,341 11,229,559 53,977,998
Aceumulaied depreclation
Balance a5 of fanuary 1, 2018 - 61278 1,284,028 364,490 ATIITY 2474342 BSILRNS AEMS17 113,622 - 21,080,143
Depreciation for the yext . M4 235,030 168,644 65290 476407 1LJSBI64 L1236 58527 . 3047
Disposal - (29.9%1) (39.71%9) . = _1314%) 183.27D - - {184,479
Balance a5 of December 3], 1018 - 742 1,479,403 523,134 S4LEAT  1919.IT8 10206700 75463 17L149 - HAWIN
Net beok value o1 of December
31, 118 3,623.871 330,214 44,783 a30,8%5 ISANIY  TIR852 5,954,668 5860829 90,192 11.119.559 19,351,887
Cost
Balence es of January 1, 2017 3518741 BR7.971 1,482,197 431,646 780277 3083455 15,527,708 10,668,131 21246 1 403,986 3B014,353
Additions - 160,818 174,266 $1.511 0247 M5IM 411,630 531,245 B 4528051 6,473,163
Dispoal - (24,939 15,191 19,248) - {17818 {405017)  (9%0,155) - < (1,442,166}
Transkrs - - 264,024 84219 . 1360 159912 3049799 - {3.570214) -
Balsaczasof December 31,2007 3,515,741 1,023,350 1,915,296 581,186 820519 3313321 15454380 13,179,010 17146 LE67813  M5382
Accumuisted depredation
Balance ns of Januacy 1, 2017 - 498,539 1,150,734 320,046 402,76 20784 1M5ATT 76529 68,173 - 1947048
Depreeistion for the year - 159,378 133,545 510 Hell 453,122 1357428 134,157 3449 - 3015791
Disposa - 24,939) {5,191) {8,657) - {16884) {371,493) bzl )] - - {1,406,130)
Balance as of December M, 2017 - £32,978 1,184,082 61490 47731 47426 BSSLAL 6801517 111,622 ~ 20080, 043
Net book raluc a1 of December
30,2087 3,515,141 3508T1 531,208 I ALE 3,146 839859 ET62AIT 6477500 113,624 LGATALY 11965204
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
13) Other credit balances

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Accrued expenses — advertisement material 1,063,889 1,807,542
Bonus provision 7,686,015 4,902,942
Acerued interest 48,426 1,075,361
Shareholders deposits 679,125 769,068
Contingent liability provision 1,812,708 1,600,103
Accrued expenses 3,433,307 2,793,497
Jordantan universities provision 76,448 756,448
Board of directors’ remuneration 45,000 45,000
Humanitarian cases fund 85,583 66,711
Sccial security deposits 8,642 11,402
Others 473,296 575,068

15,412,43% 13,723,642

14) Pavables due to acquisition
14-1 Pavables due to acquisition- Short term

In December 4, 2017, Al Fakher Holding- USA acquired 100% of the capital of Alfakher Distribution USA
(Previously Sierra Network), as the remaining investment amount will be paid during 2019,

14-2 Pavables duc to acquisition- Long term
The Group completed the purchase of the rights of distribution activities for Al Fakher products in §3

countries under “an agreement of purchasing the rights of distribution activates”. Which resulied in o
deferred amount for old owner of the disiribution activities of JD 14,180,000 which will be paid in 2020,

15) Logng and bank fncilitics

135-1 Loans and bank facilitics — Short term

As ol December 31,

Bank's name Facility type 2018 2017
In Jordanian Dinar
Bank of Jardan Overdraft 1,205,470 1,080,815
Bank of Jordan {1) Loan 15,930,000 15,930,000
Bank of Jordan (2) Loan 37,155 32,931
Bank of Jordan (3) Loan 129,300 -
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 37116 -
Housing Bank (5) Loan 1,646,673 1,098,816
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan 59,083,333 -
Bank of Jordan Loan - 25,000,000
Caira Anmman Bank Loan - 28,359,868
Arab Jordanion Investment Bonk Loan - 14,200,000

78,069,047 85,702,430
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15-2 Loans and Bonk facilities — Long term

As of December 31,

Bank's name Facility type 2018 2017
In Jordanian Dinar
Bank of Jordan (2) Loan 282,378 317,088
Bank of Jaordan {3) Loan 711,050 -
Bank of Jordan (4) Loan 210,324 -
Housing Bank (5) Loan 7,164,960 8,813,184
Credit Suisse (6) Syndicated loan 118,166,667 -

126,535,379 9,130,272

Al Fakher Tobacco for Trading and Agencies Company — subsidiary company obtained 2 credit facilities
in the year 2013 from the Bank of Jordan amounted 25,000,000 USD, (17,700,000 JOD) which represcol 8
reducing loan, that will be settled in one payment on January 4, 2014 with a LIBOR of +2%. The loan
payment due date has been extended during the years 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 and lastly in December
27,2018, as the loan payments due date has been extended 1o be settled in one payment on March 31, 2019
with a LIBOR 3 months + %3.75 and without a limit and with the guaraniee of Al- Eqbal investment
company.

The purpose of these credit facilities is to pay dividends to sharcholders.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the program of
advances of the Ceniral Bank for the industrial sectors, as the loan is distributed according to the invoices
submitted by the company for disbursments and any completed works with a percentage of 100% of the
value of invoices and works with a maximum value of JOD 571,200, The loan is subject to 4.5% and
commission of zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence

payment of 108 equal monthly payments including interest, the first installment after 6 months from the
date of execution until full repayment.

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement to grant a loan from bank of Jordan within the program of
advances of the Central Bank for the industrial sectors, os the loan is distributed according to the invoices
submitted by the company for disbursments and any completed works with a percentage of 100% of the
value of jnvojces and works with o maximum value of JOD 905,000. The loan is subject to 4 % and
commission of zcro and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence

payment of 84 equal monthly payments including interest, the first installment afier 6 months from the date
of cxecution until full repayment,

Spectrum Company has signed an agreement io grant a loan from bank of Jordan to purchase a land for Al
zayloun maounten project amounted to JOD 282,000, The loan is subject to 8.375% and commission of
zero and repaid on equal monthly premium inclusive of interest and shall commence payment of 84 equal
monthly payments including interest, the first installment after 6 months from the date of execution uatil
full repayment.

Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company obtained credit facilities from the Housing Bank
with an amount of USD 14 million for the purpose of distributing dividends, where the loan is paid over
maximum seven years including one year of grace period and installments are paid monthly per annum
amounted to USD 194,000 and by the end of the seventh year, the remnining balance of the loan will be

paid in onc installment with interest of 1 month LIBOR + 2.25 with minimum of 3.25% with a guarantee
of Egbal Investment Company.
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6. Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company — Cayman island obtained a bank loan amounted
to USD 250 Million with an interest rale ranging from 3% to 3,25% + 3 months of LIBOR. And the first
installment is due on June 30, 2019. With the following guarantees:

= Guaraniee the shares of Al Eqbal Investment company in Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco and
Agencies Trading - Cayman Islands.

» Guarantee the sheres of Al-Fakher Holding Company for Tobacco nd Agencies Trading in Al Fakher
Tobacoo Company.

e Guarantee the shares Al Fakher international in Pioneer Venture.

» Mortgaging the equipment only in addition to the land lease of Ajman.

The Bank of Jordan is considered related party as the group has total loans and bank facilities amounted to
18,542,793 JD from bank of Jordan.

16) Costof sales
For the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Raw Malerials beginning of the year 20,168,810 15,152,781
Raw Material from the acquired companies 493,919 -
Raw Material purchases during the year 72,331,998 85,126,717
Raw Materials end of the year {20,242 862} (20,168,810)
Raw Materials used in production 72,751,865 80,110,688
Work in process - beginning of the year 88,908 164,721
Indirect manufacturing cost® 19,902,554 17,809,543
Work in process - end of the year (212,878) (88,908)
Cost of goods Manufactured 92,530,449 97,996,044
Finished Goods-beginning of the year 5,919,453 1,980,067
Finished Goods from the acquired companies 7,529,790 -
Cost of finished goods purchases 1,343,570 -
Finished Goods- End of the year (15,240,671} (5,919,453)
Cost of goods sold 92,682,591 94,056,658
Add:
Cost of distributed goods and promotional materials 3,711,182 9,548,809
Cost of selling advertising goods 510,235 1,116,897
Subtract:
Cost of free distributed goods (1,036,513) {5,100,445)
Cost of goods returned to manufacturing (241,811) (88,956)
95,025,684 99,532,963
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AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

*Manufacturing cost includes the following

Far the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

Depreciation and amartization

Salaries, wages, overtime and related expenses

Employees’ rewards
Fuel

Gencral mointenance

Repairs expenses and spare parts
Consumed materials and tools

Rent expenses

End of services indemnity

Damaged materials

Training expenses and employees® residency
Electricity and waler

Insurance expense

Travel and transportation

Customs expenses

Cost of returned goods 1o manufacturing
Project expenses

Export and shipping fees

Fees and subscriptions

Consulting expenses

Food and hospitality expenses

Cleaning expenses

Provision for slow moving items

Other expenses

2018 2017
3,504,175 3,158,881
5,900,755 5,071,487
1,923,730 1,156,597
1,044,569 851,249
326,932 606,395
778,874 745,461
591,753 626,017
844,257 707,619
372,174 405,544
312,249 56,681
176,987 193,692
479,956 520,063
416,282 333,000
191,743 176,994
- 248,560
219,542 6,551
691,236 1,966,697
124,941 62,196
206,362 114,139
44,160 48,417
348,386 206,896
183,957 196,760
1,145,970 188,442
73,564 161,205
19,902,554 17,809,543
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17} Administrative expenses

For the year end December 31,
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Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Salaries, wages and relaled expenses 6,739,108 4,942 519
Employees' rewards 5,300,947 2,892 880
Donations 398,550 361,464
Travel expenses 834,962 716,777
Studies and consuitations 1,026,169 1,648,264
End of service indemnity 519,854 451,239
Depreciation and amortizalion 550,787 204,169
Rent expenses 471,800 364,889
Legal and consulting fees 2,757,686 677,197
Professional, Studies and consultations fees 760,174 1,258,403
Fees and subscriplions 280,185 299,505
Health insurance 457,561 194,847
Communications expenses 82,313 147,514
Boaord of directors transportation 150,000 174,950
Bdaya project 101,571 112,985
Trade marks expenses 56,725 20,899
Advertisement 40,946 20,275
Transportation 166,308 116,273
Haospitalities 85,764 45,745
Bank commission 021,775 47,111
Stationary and printings 58,351 47,149
Vchicles expenses 24,044 20,022
General maintenance 25,876 33,748
Consumed materials 125,701 11,075
Electricity and water 61,092 14,643
Cleaning expenses 23,492 16,367
Fuel 28,802 24,269
Training 67,705 66,534
Audit committee fees 6,000 6,000
Advertising material management 26,400 86,159
Tax contingent liabilities provision 212,605 -
Other 479,138 453,328
22,838,391 15,567,199

Executive management short term salaries and remunerations for Eqbal Company and il's subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2018 amounted 1o JOD 3,326,215 (December 31, 2017: JOD 2,025,689).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18) Selling and distribution expenses

For the year end December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

2018 2017
Salaries, wages, overtime and related expenses 3,310,165 1,484,467
Employees’ rewards 1,079,182 664,047
Export and shipping expenses 713,198 267,218
Exhibit expenses 413,371 407,644
Lawsuits expenses 281,714 671,893
Travel and residency 720,309 325,455
Studies and consultations 250919 56,301
Designs expense 1,690,317 1,820,551
Materials 252,151 235,478
End of service of indemnity 203,543 160,366
Communications expenses 6,399 38,546
Damaged and absolute goods 169,995 154,571
Adverlising expense 2,035,117 707,698
Rent expense 13,744 11,882
Health insurance 68,858 41,087
Depreciation and amorttization 50,907 16,335
Transponation 4,892 43,846
Hospitality 32,139 11,823
Expected credit loss provision 251,238 =
Training 54,751 19,965
Other 265,533 35,625
11,868,442 7,174,798
19) Dividends
The following table described the declared dividends by the Group:
Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash Dividends distributed* - 40,000,000
- 40,000,000

* The Generol assembly decided in ils meeting held on March 6, 2017 to distribute an amount of 40,000,000

JD os dividends for the year 2016.
20) Income tax

Income tax expense is recognized based on the group's tax consultant and group management estimates of
the annual weighted average income tax rate expected for the full financial year applied to the pre-tax

income of the year.

The movement os income tax provision during the year was as follows:

Jordanian Dinar

Balance at the beginning of the year
Income tax cxpense for the year
Income tex paid during the year

Balance at the end of the year

38

For the year ended as of

December 31,

2018 2017
6,021,753 5,609,153
7,716,898 5,693,123

(6,515,061} (5,280,523)
7,223,590 6,021,753
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income 1ax expense recognized based on group's management estimate of enacted of average annual tax
rate for the whole financial year which is applied on the profit before tax for the year. The group makes a
reconciliation between taxable income and financial income. The effective tax rate for the group which
applied on the profit is 13% as for the year ended December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017: 10.86%) .

Earnings per share

Jordanian Dinar For the vear ended as of December 31,
2018 2017
Profit for the year (JD) 51,653,944 46,699,335
Woeighted average for number of shares (Share) 60,000,000 60,000,000
Earnings per share for the year 0.86 0.78

The eamings per share was calculated by dividing the profit for the year on the number of outstanding
shares amounting te 60 million shares as of December 31, 2018.

The weighted average for number of shares was adjusted for comparative year, as the company has
capitelized 30 million free shares from the retained eamings.

Provision of emplovecs® end of service indemnity

End of service indemnity is calculated according to the group’s intemal policy, the movement on the
provision during the year was as follows:

For the vear cnded as of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017

Balance as of | January 4,344 446 3,880,311
Provision for the year 1,055,014 1,017,149
Paid during the year (114,477) (553,014)
Balance at the end of the year 5,284,983 4,344 446

Contingent liabilitics
The contingent linbilities at the date of these consolidated financial statemenls date ore as the following:

Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Bank guarantees 11,040,578 2,405,471
11,040,578 2,405,471
Apainst cash margins represented as follow:
Jordanian Dinar As of December 31,
2018 2017
Cash margins 8,975,403 170,755
8,975,403 170,755

The Company filed a lawsuit with the First Instance Court to object to the decisions passed on by the Income
Tax Department for imposing income lax on the year 2012 with an amount of ID 111,756 in addition to &
lepal compensation amount of ¥D 46,123. A decision was issued in the case to accept the lawsuit and prevent
the tax depariment from claiming the company the amount of the tax difference because of a formal error
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in the procedures of issuing the final decision of the Tax Department, with the possibility that the 1ax
department to correct the procedures and raise a new claimn against the company with the tax amount,

2) The Group's subsidiary (Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Compaay) filed a lawsuit with the
First Instance Court (o object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Depariment for imposing
income taxes for the years of 2009, 2010 and 2011 with an amount of JD 7,843,927 and Legel compensation
amount of JD 3,889,245 and 111,372 for the education support fund. the Tax Court decision was issucd
containing the concelation of the decision of the Income Tax Depariment as well as preventing them from
claiming the company for the smounts mentioned, and reserving an amount of JOD 288,681 for income tax
and JD 111,372 for the education support fund end JD 166,715 as a legal compensation. As the company
filed a discriminatory appeal against the decision and the lawsuit is currently at the Supreme Court.

Based on the tax consultant and the group’s management opinion, the company will not pay more than the
amounts conlained in the experience report, as the company booked an addition amount of provision
amounted to JOD 212,000 during the first quarier in 2018.

3) The Group's subsidiary (Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company) filed a lawsuit with the
First Instance Court to object on the decisions passed on by the Income Tax Department for impasing
income taxes with an amount of TD 15,749,062 for the years 2012,2013,2014,2015 and 2016 and an amount
of JD 9,510,970 as legal compensation, and the case is still pending.

Based on the Group's management and it's legal consultant opinion, the probahility of winning the legal
case is high because the profit is from a branch and not from an investment. In Addition, the company has
paid the due payments to the Tax Department in Aqaba.

And the company booked an extra provision amounted to JD 1,386,102 for the year 2015.
4) The old partner of Al Fakher distribution company (previously Siema Network) filed a lawsuit as a
compensation on the value of selling the company (Sierra) Against, Al Fakher distribution, Al Fakher

holding company- USA and Al-Fakher for Trading Tobacco and Agencies Company and asked for a
compensation amounted to JD 2,493,160,

Based on the Group's management and tax consultant opinion, the probability of winning the legal case is
very high and if the amount required must be paid, it will be deducted from the old partners’ payments.

24) Other Income

For the year end December 31,

2018 2017
Jordanian Dinar
Foreign exchange rate and prices 137,578 (749,619)
Scrap sales 120,102 966,140
Other 52,718 26,914
310,398 243,435

25) Advance Payment for Investments

The details for the advance payments for investments are ns follows:

- Spectrum International for Renewable Encrgy- has invest in a joint project in Sol In Par S.R.L - Ttaly, where
the company paid an advance payment amounted to JD 863,871.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Administrative and logistics fees

The owner of distribution activities was charged costs related to the administrative and logistics before the
acquisition. And the value that was charged on the owner of the distribution activities amounted to JD

10,955,274 for the year ended at December 31, 2018, (JD 15,467,068 for the year ended at December
31,2017).

Increasing Capital
The General Assembly decided in the extraordinary meeting on June 3, 2018 1o increase its capilal by

30,000,000 shares through capitalizing retained ezmings by an amount of JD 30,000,000 10 become the
authorized and paid-up capital of 60,000,000 (1 JD/share)

Statutory Reserve

The smounts in this account represent what transferred from the annual profit before laxes and fees. By
10% during the year and previous yeers, according to the Companies Act, and is not available for
distribution o shareholders. The statutory reserve calculaled based on the results of standalone financial
statements for Eqgbal Investment Company and it’s subsidiaries which subject to Jordanian Companies Law.

Financial risk management
Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

Capital managemenl

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the sbove risks, the Group's
objcctives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital.

Risk management framework

The Group's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk
management framework,

The Group's risk management policics are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group,
10 set appropriate risk limits and controls, and lo monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly o reflect changes in market conditions and
the group's activities, The group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Group Audit Commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation 1o the risks faced by the Group. Group management undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reporied to the Audit Committee,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financinl loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's Cash at banks and deposits,
trade and other receivables and other debit balances.
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The casrying amount of the finoncial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the date of consolidated financial statements was as follows:

Carrying value as at

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Current accounts and deposits at banks 57,671,841 21,543,982
Trade and other receivables 80,019,775 68,633,332
Other debit balances 14,625,764 609,718
152,317,380 90,787.032

Trade and other receivables

The Group applies IFRS 9 a simple approach that measures the expecled credit loss which uses the
provision of expected aging credit loss for receivables.

For the purpose of measuring expected credit loss, receivables are gathered based on common credit risk
characteristics and on the maturity of the receivables. The Group has therefore summarized the expecied
loss ratios for reccivables as approximate and reasonable with respect to loss ratios for reccivables.

The expected loss ratios have been prepared on the basis of payments / repayments of reccivables during
the period from January 1, 2018 ta December 31, 2018 and similar historical credit losses tested during
this period. The historical foss ratios have been adjusted to reflect the impaet of research information on
macroeconomic faclors, affecting the ability of customers 1o repay receivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficuity in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are scitled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach
to managing liquidity is lo ensure, as for as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withowt incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation,

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expecied operationa! cxpenses, including
the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters, In addition, the Group maintains line of eredit
from its bank for sudden cash requirements.

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities:

Carrying Contractual less than More than
Amount Cash Flows a year A yeor
As of December 31, 2018
Jordanian Dinar
Deferred cheques -Short Term 380,655 {380,655} (386,655)
Accounts payable 17,615,280  (17,615,290) (17,615,290)
Other credit balances 15,412,439 {15,412,439) (15,412,439)
Income tax provision 7,223,550 (7.223,590) (7,223,590) -
Payables due 10 acquisitions 18,363,378 (1B,363,378) (4,183,378)  (14,180,000)
Loans and Bank facilities 204,604,426 (204,604,426)  (78,069,047) (126,535,379)

Provision of employces’ end of service

indemnity 5,284,983 {5.284,983) - (5,284,983)

268,884,761 (268,884,761) (122,884,399) (146,000,362)
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Carrying Contractun] less than More than
Amount Cash Flows f year a year
As o[ December 31, 2017
Jordanian Dinar
Deferred cheques -Short Term 299,479 (299,479) (299,479) -
Accounts payable 13,901,441 (13,901,441} (13,901,441 -
Other credit balances 13,723,642 (13,723,642) (13,723,642) -
Income tax provision 6,021,753 (6,021,753) {6,021,753) -
Payables due to acquisitions 32,164,360 (32,164,360)  (29,505,610) (2,658,750)
Loans and Bank facilities 94,832,702 (94,832,702)  (85,702,430) {9,130,272)
Provision of employees’ end of service
indemnity 4,344,446 (4,344,446) - (4,344,446)
165,287,823  (165,287.823) ( 149,154,355)  (16,133,468)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate and equity
prices will affect the group’s profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market sk exposures within acceptable
paramelers, while oplimizing the return.

Currency Risk

Most of the group's financial assets and liabilities are in Jordanion Dinar, US Dollar and UAE Dithams,
and due to the fact that the Jordanian Dinar is pegged with US Dollar and UAE Dirhams is pegged with US

Dollar, the Group's management believes that the foreign currency risk is not material on the consolidated
financial statements.

The following is a summary of the quantitative information related to the Group facing currency risk
provided to management of the Group based on the risk management policy:

31 December 2018

EURO EGP SAR TRY

As of December 31, 2018
Jordanian Dinar
Cash on hand and at banks 12,665,128 4,335,038 448,416 77,127
Trade and other receivables 1,246,577 497,792 1,387,420 9.971
Other debit balances 155,253 87,288 5,072,211 86,960
Accounts payable - 2,120,131 27,668 -
Other credit balances 31,089 1,871,741 359,320 611,837

14,098,047 8,911,990 7,295,035 785,895

Sensitivity onalysis

A 10 % strengthening of the JD against Euro, Egyptian pound, Saudi riyal and Turkish lira at 31 December
would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the amounls shown below. This analysis assumes that

all other variables, in pasticular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2018.

Increased Decreased
Jordanian Dinar Prolit or (loss) Profit or (Joss)
As of December 31,2018
EURO 1,409,804 (1,409,804)
EGP 891,199 (891,199)
SAR 729,503 (729,503)
TRY 78,585 (78,585)

43



|

B E BN @B

A E O E DR REDENGEDEGDEDEDEGDHSE D

11 R 5 1

5 8

AL-EQBAL INVESTMENT COMPANY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Interest rate risk

At the reporting date of consolidated financial statements the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-
bearing financial instruments was ns follows:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017
Fixed Rate Instruments:
Financial Assels 2,682,608 4,758,702
Variable rate instrument
Financial Liabilities (204,604,426) {94,832,702)

Other market price risk

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held for
meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group’s cbligations as well as investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its
investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on
an individual basis and all buy and sel] decisions are approved by the Risk Management Committee,

Share price risk

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the consolidated financial statements date would have
incrensed (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes Lhat all
other vanables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Equity
Jordanian Dinar 5% 5%
D er 31, 2018 Increase decrense
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1.526 {7,526)
7,926 (7,526)
As of December 31, 2017
Jordanian Dinar
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 39,236 {39,236)
39,236 (39,236)

Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital cansists of ordinary shares, retained
eamings and interests of the Group.

The menagement monitors the retum on capital, which the management defined as net operation income
divided by total shareholders” equity.

The management secks o maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings ond the advantages and security afforded by a sound eapital position.

The group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,

Deht-to-adjusted Capital Ratio

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2018 2017

Total Debt 268,384,761 165,287 823
(Less) cash on hand and at banks (57,772,284) {21,644,788)
Nect Debt 211,112,477 143,643,035
Net Sharsholders' equity 145,169,332 93,348,847
Adjusted capital 145,169,332 93,348,847
Debt - to- adjusted capital ratio 1.48 1.54
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30) Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: valuation method can be determined either direclly (i.c., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from
prices). This level includes instruments valuated based on:

Prices quoted in active markets for similer instruments or through the usc of valuation model that includes
inputs that can be traced to markets, these inputs good be defend directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or linbility that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

- Assets and linbilities measured at fair value on a non-recurrent basis:
The Group measures below assels and liabilities at fair value on a non-recurrent basis

Baook Value Fair Value
Other
Jordanian Dirar Financinl assets financiat Level level level
at amortized cost liabilitics (n 2) (3}
December i8
Financial assets
Cash on hand and at banks 57,772,284 - 57,772,284 - -
Financial assets ot fair value
through statement of other
comprechensive income 150,525 - - 150,525 -
Book Value Falr Value
Other
Jordanian Dinar Financiel assets financial Level Level level
ot amortized cost linbilitics (1) (2) {3)
December 31 17
Financial nysets
Cash on hand and at banks 21,644,788 - 21,644,788 - -
Financial assets at fair value
through siatement of other
comprehensive income 784,716 - 483,691 301,025 -

* Fair value in accordance with level (2)
This item represents the cost of financial asscts through other comprehensive income that is not listed in
financial markets for the Group portion in North manufacturing Company -Jenin-. The Group performed
test over Lhe fair value for this item using Net asset value of the last available audited financial statements,
the company's management belicves that this is the most convenient way 1o mensure the fair value of the
investment due to the lack of updated information on the market value of this investment.
- Assets and liabilities not mcasured at fair value:

These financial instruments are measured at amortized cost and the fair vatue of these instruments do not
difTer significantly from their amortized cost.

Book Value Fair Value
Finnncial assets Other
at nmortized finnncial Level Level Level
Jordanian Dinar cost fiabilities (1} 2y (3)
December 31, 2018
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 80,019,775 - - 80,019,775 -
Other debit balances 25,198,616 - - 25,198,616 -
Financial linbilitics -
Deferred cheques (380,655) - (380,655) -
Accounts payable (17,124,457) - - {17,124,45%) -
Other credit balances (15,412,439) - - {15412,439) -
Payables due to acquisition (18,363,378) - - {1B,363,378) -
Loans and Bank facilitics (204,604,426) - - {204,604,426) -
45
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There are no transfers between the levels until the end of the financial year ended as of December 31, 2018.

Book Value Falr Value

Financial
Jordanian Dinar assets ot Other

amortized financial Level Level level

cost liabilities (1) {2} {3}
ember

Financigl nssefs
Trade and other receivables 68,633,332 - - 68,633,332 -
Other debit balances 5,944,212 - - 5,944,212 -
Financial liabilities
Deferred cheques (299.479) - - {299,479) -
Accounts payable (13,901,441) - - (13,901,441) -
Other credit balances (13,723,642) - - (13,723,642) -
Payables due to acquisition (32,164,360) - - {32,164,360) -
Loans and Bank facilities (94,832,702) - - (94,832,702) -

There are no transfers between the Jevels vntil the end of the financial year ended as of December 31, 2017,

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial nssets and liabilities oppearing in the financial
slalements approximate to the foir values.

Compurative fipures

The comparalive figures represent the consolidated statement of finuncial position as at 31 December 2017,
in addition to the consolidaled statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated

statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2017.

46



